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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 0o
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO
e 7 PH 3:35
W :
SELTRY D LANGHA
'11 —— O O 6 7 3d CLEEA
Civil Action No. C U RER - o

DEP. CLK

DAVID L. HILDEBRAND, an individual,

Plaintiff,

ALL TIRE SUPPLY COMPANY;

and
AMERICAN AUTOMOTIVE

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff, David Hildebrand, an individual, alleges as follows:

I. PARTIES

1. Plaintiff, David Hildebrand, is an individual and resident of this judicial district.

2. Defendants ALL TIRE SUPPLY COMPANY (hereby referred to as ATD); and
Defendants AMERICAN AUTOMOTIVE (hereby referred to as AA) are believed to
be corporation’s organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas.
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3.

II. JURISTICTION AND VENUE

The Court has original jurisdiction over plaintiff’s First through Fifth Claims for
relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1338(a).

Venue in this District is proper under 28 U.S.C. 1400(a) in that said defendants are
engaged in commercial activities in this District, and have purposefully availed
themselves of the privilege of conducting business in this district, to an extent sufficient
to satisfy the requirements of establishing “residence” for the purpose of the above

statute.

III. OPERATIVE FACTS

Plaintiff, David Hildebrand (hereinafter “Hildebrand™), is the inventor of certain know-
how for the removal of damaged bolts, lugnuts and other threaded connecting devices,
including the removal of devices where either the threads or outer edges thereof have been
damaged so that they cannot be removed using conventional tools.

Hildebrand set out to develop the device incorporating the invention, which Hildebrand
intended to exploit on the commercial market for profit.

On April 14, 1998, Hildebrand’s invention was granted protection under United States
Patent No. 5,737,981, entitled “REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED CONNECTING
DEVICES.” A copy of said Patent (hereinafter “the 981 patent™) is attached hereto, labeled

Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -2-
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8. Hildebrand is informed and believes that defendants ATS & AA have, or are now
engaged; in the manufacturing, advertisement, offering of sale, sale, and/or distribution of

devices which infringe the Hildebrand ‘981 patent. (Exhibit-B)

9. On information and belief, the trade names under which the defendants’ infringing devices
have been manufactured, advertised, offered for sale, sold and/or distributed include;
“DELUXE HUBCAP & WHEEL LOCK REMOVAL KIT”, Part number 87-200,
specifically including within kit, a socket referred to as “DUAL SIDED TWIST SOCKET

LUGNUT/LUGBOLT REMOVER?”. (Exhibits B & C)

IV. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Infringement of U.S. Patent No. 5,737,981 against Defendant)

10. Hildebrand hereby incorporates paragraphs 1 through 9 as though fully set forth at this
point.
11. On the basis of the actions of defendants as alleged above in paragraphs 8 and 9,

defendant has violated Hildebrand’s rights under 35 U.S.C. 271(a) by making, using, selling
or offering for sale, within the United States, subsequent to April 14, 1998, and without the
express or implied authority or consent of Hildebrand, the invention described in Claims 1-14
of United States Patent No. 5,737,981.

12. As a direct proximate result of Defendants infringing acts, Hildebrand has been damaged

in amounts to be determined at trial.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -3-
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13. Plaintiff further alleges, on information and belief, that Defendant has committed the
infringing act as alleged herein after having been notified of the fact that said acts infringed
U. S. Patent No. 5,737,981, and therefore said Defendants’ infringing acts have been and are
being committed willfully and intentionally.

14. As a result of the facts alleged in paragraph 13, Hildebrand is entitled to an increase in

damages, and an award of attorney’s fees and costs, pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 284 and 285.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Injunction)
15. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 14 as fully set forth at this point.
16. As a result of Defendants’ infringing acts, Hildebrand is suffering, and unless

Defendants’ infringing acts are enjoined will continue to suffer, irreparable and incalculable
damage.

17. Hildebrand is therefore entitled to, and prays for, a preliminary and permanent injunction
under 35 U.S.C. 283, barring Defendants, and all parties acting by, through or on behalf of
said Defendants, from engaging in any further manufacture, use, sale, offering of sale, or
exploitation of any products or devices which infringe Hildebrand’s Patent

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Seizure and/or destruction of infringing goods)

18. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 17 as though fully set forth at this point.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -4-
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19. Hildebrand alleges on information and belief that as a result of Defendants’ infringing
acts there exists, within the United States, devices and materials which infringe Hildebrand’s
patent as well as marketing and promotional materials in which said infringing devices are
offered for sale, in violation of 35 U.S.C. 271(a).

20. Pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 283 Hildebrand prays for an order directing the immediate seizure

and/or destruction of all of said infringing devices and related marketing materials.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Accounting)
21. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 20 as though fully set forth at this point.
22. Hildebrand is informed and believes that Defendants have realized income as a result of
their infringing acts.
23. Hildebrand requests that Defendants be ordered to furnish full accounting of all such

income or other value realized from their infringing acts.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Imposition of constructive trust)

24. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 23 as though fully set forth at this point.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -5-
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25. Hildebrand is informed and believes that Defendants have realized and continue to
realize income from their infringing acts.

26. Hildebrand requests that all income realized by Defendants from their infringing
acts be placed in constructive trust for the benefit of Hildebrand.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.
V. PRAYER FOR DAMAGES

Hildebrand seeks the following relief:

1. General Damages.
‘ 2. A preliminary and permanent injunction barring Defendants, and all persons acting by,
through or on their behalf, from using, making, distributing, selling or offering for sale
any devices currently sold, or any other devices, which infringe U. S. Patent 5,737,981.
3. An order directing the immediate seizure and/or destruction of all devices which

infringe U. S. Patent No. 5,737,981

4. Punitive damages according to proof.

5. Enhanced damages according to proof.

6. An award of all costs and attorney’s fees incurred in this action.

7. An award of any other costs associated with the filing and maintaining of this action

that the Court can enter, using its inherent power.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -6-
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PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY AS TO ALL CAUSES.

Respectfully submitted this /7 day of March, 2011

David L. Hildebrand
Plaintiff Pro-Se

975 East 58™ Ave. Unit-A
Denver, Colorado 80216
(303) 995-9533 PH.

(303) 466-1938 FAX.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -7-
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United States Patent 9 (11 Patent Number: 5,737,981
Hildebrand 451 Date of Patent: Apr. 14, 1998
{54 REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED Primary Examiner—James G. Smith

CONNECTING DEVICES Artomey, Agent, or Firm—Rick Martin
{76) Inventor: David Lewis Hildebrand, 135 Gay St., [57] ABSTRACT

Lol . Col 1
ngmont, Colo. 3050 A removal device adapted for the removal of difficult to

remove threaded connecting devices threaded in a first

211 Appl No.: 825885 direction. The device includes a body having a first end and
[22] Filed: Apr. 2, 1997 a second end, wherein the first end includes an opening
which extends toward the second end of the body. The

Related US. Application Data opening is sized to receive a threaded connecting device

S threaded in a first direction and continuousl from a
[63] Contimustion of Ser. No. 531,336, Sep. 20, 1995, sbandomed. gt diameter at the first end to a mndy:.ap“sl o it

511 Int. CLS B25B 13/50  cxicnds toward the second end, wherein the first diameter is
{521 US.CL 81/53.2; 81/120 larger than the second diameter. The opening further
58] Fiedd of Search .......coreeee. 81753.2, 120, 121.1,  includes an internal surface threaded in direction opposite

81/124.6. 186  the threading of the threaded connecting device which must
be removed. The device further includes structure for rotat-
[s61 References Cited ing the body when it is positioned over the threaded con-
necting device, wherein rotation of the body causes the
U.S. PATENT DOCUMENT
S S internal threading of the removal device to engage the

::;gﬁgg lg,/ggg Mﬂnmcﬁmﬁ:»«-----m»—u-»—--m-- 31/8 112;:235 threaded connecting device causing the threaded connecting
st e e device to rotate in a direction appropriate for the removal of
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316,090 1271964 McLellsp oo 81/532 g’:n'hmded connccting device threaded in the first direo

3,996,819 12/1976 King 81/124.6 )

4,671,041 671987 HANSOR ..ccoverrrrecsrorssrnsaaresnemene 817532

5,551,320 971996 Horobec et al. ......cocorveromenen. 817532 14 Claims, 1 Prawing Sheet
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REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED
CONNECTING DEVICES

CROSS-REFERENCED PATENTS

This is a Continuing application from U.S. patent appli-
cation Ser. No. 08/531.336, filed Sep. 20, 1995. now aban-
doned.

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

1. Field of the Invention

The invention relates to a device for the removal of
threaded connecting devices. More particularly, the inven-
tion relates to an internally threaded removal device for the
removal of threaded connecting devices, wherein the
removal device is threaded in a direction opposite to the
threading direction of the threaded connecting device.

2. Background of the Invention

Everyone is confronted at sometime with a nut that for
some reason cannot be removed from the object to which it
is secured, although the nut must be removed before the
individual can continue with the project he or she is under-
taking. :

In most instances the individual must usec tools not
designed for the purpose of removing the nut. This often
results in further damage to the object to which the nut is
secured. For example, when the nut includes a hexagonal or
square shaped head designed for a specific size socket which
has been worn over time by use or abuse. the socket no
longer properly fits over the head. As a result, the nut is not
able to be removed in the appropriatc manner. The indi-
vidual must then somehow rotate the nut. This is often
attempted with a wrench vice grips. or other tool. not
designed for the job.

Attempts have been made to overcome this problem by
providing tools which will engage and rotate the nut.
However., these attempt have met with only limited success.
For example, U.S. Pat. No. 3,161,090 to McLellan discloses
a stud engaging wreach having a fluted gripping surface.
The wrench is provide with a plurality of flutes designed to
engage the threads of a stud. The helix of the flutes is
designed to cooperate with the direction of the threads of the
stud so as to be opposite thereto. The flutes directly engage
the threads permitting removal of the stud when the wrench
is rotated. The use of flutes as disclosed by McLellan is,
however, limited in effectivencss due to the nature of the
flutes themselves. Specifically, the flutes disclosed by
McLellan are very much like the grooves in a drill bit. As
such. the flutes are designed to engage textured surfaces, for
example, the threaded outer surface of a stud. in much the
same way a drill bit is most cffective in boring through
textured materials. Similarly, U.S. Pat. No. 3.996.819 to
King discloses a socket wrench attachment for the removal
of a screw or nut. The attachment includes a conical opening
with a plurality of teeth positioned therein. As stated
previously, the prior art devices for the removal of threaded
connecting devices are limited in their effectiveness.
Consequently, a need continues to exist for a device per-
mitting the simple and effective removal of threaded con-
necting devices. The present invention provides such a
device.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

It is. therefore. an object of the presemt invention to
provide a removal device adapted for the removal of
threaded connecting devices that arc threaded in a first
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direction. The removal device includes a body having a first
end and a second end, wherein the first end includes an
opening extending toward the second end of the body. The
opening is sized to receive a threaded connecting device
threaded in a first direction, and the opening continuously
tapers from a first diameter at the first end to a second
diameter as the opening extends toward the second end.
wherein the first diameter is larger than the second diameter.
The opening is defined by an internal surface threaded in a
direction opposite the threading of the threaded connecting
device. The removal device further includes structure for
rotating the body when it is positioned over the threaded
comnecting device, wherein rotation of the body causes the
internal threading of the removal device to engage the
threaded connecting device to cause the threaded connecting
device to rotate in a direction appropriate for the removal of
the threaded connecting device.

It is another object of the present invention to provide a
removal device including at least one cutting notch on the
internal surface, wherein the at least one cutting notch is
substantially perpendicular to the threading on the internal
surface defining the opening.

It is also an object of the present invention to provide a
removal device wherein the structure for rotating includes a
projection on the second end. the projection being sized and
shaped for use with a socket.

It is also another object of the present inveation to provide
a removal device wherein the body is hollow as it extends
from the first end to the second end.

It is another object of the present invention to provide a
removal device wherein the opening is frustoconically
shape.

Other objects, advantages and salient features of the
invention will become apparent from the following detailed
description, which taken in conjunction with the annexed
drawings. discloses a preferred, but non-limiting, embodi-
ment of the subject invention.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG. 1 is a cross-sectional view of the removal device.

FIG. 2 is a top view of the removal device.

FIG. 3 is a bottom view of the removal device.

FIG. 4 is an alternate embodiment of the removal device
with a handle secured thereto.

FIG. § is an isometric view of the removal device.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERRED
EMBODIMENTS

The detailed embodiments of the present invention are
disclosed herein. It should be understood, however. that the
disclosed embodiments are merely exemplary of the
invention. which may be embodied in various forms.
Therefore, the details disclosed hercin are not to be inter-
preted as limited. but merely as the basis for the claims and
as a basis for teaching one skilled in the art how to make
and/or use the invention.

With reference to FIGS. 1-3. a removal device 10 adapted
for the removal of threaded connecting devices is disclosed.
For the pusposes of the present application, use of the term
“threaded connecting device(s)” should be understood to
refer to devices having a portion which must be rotated to
facilitate attachment of the connecting device to an object.
For example. the present removal device may be used with
convention bolt and nut arrangements where internal thread-
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ing on the nut engapes external threading on the bolt.
Alternately. the present removal device may be used with a
threaded bolt having a head intended to be engaged by a
socket. wrench. or other tool, to place the bolt within an
internally threaded hole. Similarly, the present removal
device could be used with a simple externally threaded stud
positioned within an internally threaded hole. These
examples should not be considered as limiting applications
for the present removal device, but merely as exemplary of
the many uses of the present device.

The removal device 10 includes a cylindrical body 12
having a first end 14 and a second end 16. The body 12 is
hollow as it extends from the first end 14 to the second end
16 to permit studs and bolts to pass through the body 12 as
the removal device 1@ is used. The hollow center 18 also
provides room for boring and threading tools used during the
manufacture of the removal device 10.

The first end 14 includes a frustoconical opening 20
which extends toward the second end 16 of the body 12. The
frustoconical opening 28 is defined by an internal surface 22
of the body 12 adjaceat the first end 14 of the body 12. In
the prefered embodiment, the opening 28 extends only a
portion of the distance between the first end 14 and the
second end 16 of the body 12. In fact, the opening 20 in the
preferred embodiment extends oaly about one third of the
distance between the first end 14 and the second end 16 of
the body 12,

The opening 20 is sized to receive a threaded connecting
device threaded in a first direction. The opening 20 continu-
ously tapers from a first diameter 24 at the first end 14 to a
second diameter 26 as it extends toward the second end 16.
wherein the first diameter 24 is larger than the second
diameter 26. The internal surface 22 of the body 12 defining
the opening 20 has threads 28 formed in a second direction
opposite to the first direction in which the threaded con-
necting device is threaded. That is, if the threaded connect-
ing device has a right hand thread (regular thread), then the
internal surface 22 of the body 12 will be threaded with a left
hand thread (reversc thread). - Similarly. if the threaded
connecting device has a left hand thread (reverse thread),
then the internal surface 22 of the body 12 will be threaded
with a right hand thread (regular thread). It should be
understood that while the threading 28 on the internal
surface 22 must be in a direction opposite the threading
direction of the threaded connecting device. the threading
and taper may vary in accordance with the application of the
removal device without departing from the spirit of the
present invention.

The internal surface 22 defining the opening 20 may also
be provided with cutting notches 38 extending along the
internal surface 22 in a direction approximately perpendicu-
lar to the threading 28. While three cutting notches 38 are
shown in FIG. 3. the removal device 10 may include as
many cutting notches as desired depending upon the appli-
cation of the removal device, without departing from the
spirit of the present invention. Additional cutting notches
may be possible where the application of the removal device
permits. The cutting notches 30 help the threads to cut into
the threaded connecting device to permit removal of the
threaded connecting device in a manner that will be dis-
cussed below.

A projection 32 is secured to the second end 16 of the
body 12. The projection 32 is sized and shaped for use with
a socket permitting the removal device 10 to be rotated when
it is placed over the threaded connecting device. As shown
in FIG. 2. the projection 32 may be hexagonal shaped for use
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with hexagonal shaped sockets. Additionally, the second end
16 includes a square opening 34 designed for engagement
with conventional square conmecting elements used in
socket wrenches, and other tools, where different attach-
ments may be releasably secured to the wreach. While, the
preferred embodiment is disclosed with a hexagonal shaped
projection 32, a variety of projection shapes and sizes could
be used without departing from the spirit of the present
invention. Similarly, the second end 16 of the body 12 could
be provided with a handle 36 facilitating rotation, without
departing from the spirit of the present invention (See FIG.
4 removal device 109).

In use, the removal tool is place over a threaded connect-
ing device with the frustoconical opening over the threaded
connecting device. For example. the removal tool could be
place over a worn nut secured to a bolt. The removal tool is
then rotated in a direction causing the threading on the
internal surface to engage the threaded connecting device by
cutting into the outer surface thereof. Once the threaded
connecting device is properly engaged. continued rotation of
the removal device causes rotation of the threaded connect-
ing device and ultimately removal of the threaded connect-
ing device from the object to which it was attached.
Removal of the threaded connecting device in this manner is
achicved as a result of the fact that the internal surface of the
body is threaded in a direction opposite to that of the
threaded connecting device. .

It should be understood that the body of the present
removal device can be manufacture from a variety of metals
depending upon the application for which the device is
intended. The body could also be manufactured from plastic,
or other materials, where the application of the removal
device permits. In addition, the removal device can be made
in a variety of shapes and sizes depending upon the use of
the device.

While various preferred embodiments have been shown
and described. it will be understood that there is no intent to
limit the inveation by such disclosure, but rather, is intended
to cover all modifications and alternate constructions falling
within the spirit and scope of the invention as defined in the
appended claims.

I claim:

1. Aremoval device adapted for the removal of difficult to
remove threaded connecting devices, comprising:

a body having a first end and a second end, the first end
including an opening which extends toward the second
end of the body;

the opening is defined by an internal surface of the body
and is sized to receive a threaded connecting device
threaded in a first direction, wherein the internal surface
is threaded in a second direction opposite the first
direction in which the threaded connecting device is
threaded; the opening continuously tapers from a first
diameter at the first ead to a second diameter as the
opening exteads toward the sccond end, where, in the
first diameter is larger than the second diameter;

said opening extends only a portion of a distance between
the first end and the second end of the body;

said second end includes an opening designed for engage-
ment with conventional connecting clements used in a
removal tool where different connecting clements may
be secured to the removal tool; and

wherein rotation of the body causes said threading on the
internal surface of the removal device to engage the
threaded connecting device causing the threaded con-
necting device to rotate in a direction appropriate for
the removal of the threaded connecting device.
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2. The device according to claim 1. wherein the internal
surface includes at least one cutting notch.

3. The device according to claim 2, wherein said at least
one cutting notch is substantially perpendicular to the
threading on the internal surface defining the opening.

4. The device according to claim 2, wherein one to five
cutting notches are provided on the internal surface defining
the opening.

5. The device according to claim 3, wherein the cutting
notches arc substantially perpendicular to threading on the
internal surface defining the opening.

6. The device according to claim 1. wherein said second
end further comprises a projection. the projection sized and
shaped for use with the conaccting element.

7. the device according to claim 6, wherein the projection
is hexagonal shaped.

8. The device according to claim 1. wherein the opening
is a squarc opening in the second end of the body.

9. The device according to claim 1. wherein the body is
hollow as it extends from the first ead to the second end.

190. The device according to claim 1. wherein the opening
has a circular cross-sectional shape.

11. The device according to claim 1, wherein a handle is
sccured to the second end of the body.

12. A removal device adapted for the removal of difficult
to remove threaded connecting devices, comprising:

a cylindrical body having a first end and a second end, the
body being hollow as it extends from the first end to the
second end;

the first end including a frustoconically shaped opening
which extends toward the second end of the body and
is defined by an internal surface of the body;

the opening is sized to receive a threaded connecting
device threaded in a first direction. and the opening
continuously tapers from a first diameter at the first end
to a second diameter as the opening extends toward the
second end. wherein the first diameter is larger than the
second diameter;
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the internal swrface of the body is threaded in a second
direction opposite the first direction in which the
threaded connecting device is threaded; and

a projection secured to the second end of the body. the
projection sized and shaped for use with a socket
permitting the removal device to be rotated when it is
placed over the threaded connecting device to be
removed, wherein rotation of the body causes the
threading on the internal surface of the removal device
to engage the threaded connecting device causing the
threaded connecting device to rotate in a direction
appropriate for the removal of the threaded connecting
device.

13. A removal device adapted for the removal of difficult

to remove threaded connecting devices, comprising:

a body having a first end and a second end, the first end
including an opening which extends toward the second
end of the body;

the opening is defined by an internal surface of the body
and is sized to reccive a threaded connecting device
threaded in a first direction, wherein the internal surface
is threaded in a second direction opposite the first
direction in which the threaded connecting device is
threaded; the opening continuously tapers from a first
diameter at the first end to a second diameter as the
opening extends toward the second end, wherein the
first diameter is larger than the second diameter; and

said second end of the body having a handle affixed
thereto so that when the body is positioned over the
threaded connecting device, rotation of the body causes
said threading on the internal surface of the removal
device to engage the threaded connecting device caus-
ing the threaded connmecting device to rotate in a
direction appropriate for the removal of the threaded
connecting device.

14. The device according to claim 1. wherein the removal

tool is a wreach.
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